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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The following discussion and analysis provides an overview of the financial performance of the University of Kansas based 
on currently known facts, decisions, and conditions and is designed to assist readers in understanding the accompanying 
financial statements.  These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) principles, with the exception of GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are 
Component Units.  The University has made the decision not to include the Kansas University Endowment Association 
(KUEA) within the University’s unaudited financial statements.  This discussion – along with the financial statements and 
related footnote disclosures – has been prepared by management and should be read in conjunction with the statements and 
footnotes.  The financial statements, footnotes, and this discussion are the responsibility of management. 
 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
 

The Statement of Net Position presents the assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, and net position of the 
University at a point in time (at the end of the fiscal year).  Its purpose is to present a financial snapshot of the University.  
The Statement of Net Position includes all assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows using the accrual basis 
of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector institutions.  Under the accrual basis of 
accounting all of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or 
paid. 

 
Within the Statement of Net Position, assets and liabilities are further classified as current or non-current.  The current 
classification distinguishes those assets that are highly liquid and available for immediate and unrestricted use by the 
University, and those liabilities likely to be settled in the next 12 months. 

 
Net position is divided into three categories: 
 

1. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt, indicates the University’s equity in property, plant, and equipment. 
2. Restricted net position are further divided into two subcategories, non-expendable and expendable.  The corpus 

of non-expendable restricted resources is available only for investment purposes.  Expendable restricted net 
position is available for expenditure by the University, but must be spent for purposes as determined by donors 
and/or external entities that have placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets. 

3. Unrestricted net position is available to the University for any lawful purpose of the institution. 
 
Total assets at June 30, 2013 were $1,635.7 million, an decrease of $23.9 million (1.5%).  Capital assets net of depreciation 
comprised 65.6%, or $1,072.4 million of the assets. 
 
Total deferred outflows were $3.6 million, a decrease of $0.4 million (11.9%) compared to $4.0 million at June 30, 2012. 
 
Total liabilities were $579.5 million at June 30, 2013, a decrease of $21.1 million (3.6%) compared to $600.6 million at 
June 30, 2012.  Long-term liabilities comprised 68.4%, or $396.2 million of the liabilities.  
 
There were no deferred inflows at June 30, 2013 or June 30, 2012. 
 
Total net position at June 30, 2013 is $1,059.7 million, a $3.2million decrease over the prior year, or a 0.3% decrease in net 
position.  The breakout of net position is shown below (in thousands): 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 734,806$          717,161$          
Restricted for:
  Nonexpendable 52,012              55,558              
  Expendable:

Scholarships, research, instruction and other 49,038              43,979              
Loans 21,539              27,840              
Capital projects 19,166              15,656              
Debt service 13,418              12,897              

Unrestricted 169,699            189,832            
Total net position 1,059,678$    1,062,923$    

 
 

Net investment in capital assets represents the University’s capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding 
principal balances of debt related to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.  The $17.6 million 
increase and the corresponding decrease in unrestricted net position, reflects the University’s continued development and 
renewal of its capital assets in accordance with its long-range capital plan.   
 
 
The composition of current and non-current assets and liabilities, deferred outflows, and net position are displayed below 
for both the 2013 and 2012 fiscal year-ends (in thousands): 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents the total revenues earned and expenses 
incurred by the University for operating, non-operating and other related activities during a period of time.  Its purpose is to 
assess the University’s operating results. 
 

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Operating revenues 790,819$          775,184$          
Operating expenses (1,144,222)        (1,105,421)        
Total operating loss (353,403)           (330,237)           

Non-operating revenues 347,709            332,326            
Non-operating expenses (20,547)             (23,280)             
Income before other revenues, expenses, gains and losses (26,241)             (21,191)             

Other revenues 22,995              45,549              
Increase in net position (3,246)               24,358              

Net position, beginning of year 1,062,923         1,038,565         
Net position, end of year 1,059,677$    1,062,923$    

Consolidated Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
(in thousands of dollars)

Fiscal Year Ended

 
 

Revenues 
 
Operating revenues at the University as of June 30, 2013 increased by 2% over the previous fiscal year from $775.2 million 
to $790.8 million.  Overall operating revenues are consistent with prior year.  The following is a brief summary of the 
significant changes: 
 

• Revenue from tuition, the largest source of funding for the University, increased a modest 5% which was largely 
because of increases in tuition rates from 2012 to 2013. 

• Federal grants and contracts decreased by $23.4 million (11.3%) from $206.5 million in 2012 to $183.1 million in 
2013 largely because of the completion of projects that were funded by the American Recovery and 
Reimbursement Act of 2009 (ARRA).  ARRA funded sponsored research decreased $20.9 million in 2013 as the 
University was finalizing ARRA funded awards.  In addition, federal agencies such as the National Science 
Foundation (NSF) and the National Institute of Health (NIH) have been impacted by either flat or reduced federal 
budgets over the past couple of years, and starting in 2013 have begun to recognize the impact of federal 
sequestration.  As a result, federal agencies have reduced the number of competitions for new awards, have 
reduced or slowed down the timing of new awards, and/or have reduced spending on current awards.  In 
comparison to peers, KU has remained strong in achieving new federal sponsored research project.     

• Housing revenue increased $2.6 million (12.7%) from $20.0 million to $22.6 million primarily related to a $2.5 
million increase in room rental revenue.  During FY 2012, Gertrude Sellards Pearson (GSP) Hall, which houses 
102 students, was closed for renovation and re-opened in Fall 2012.  

• Athletic revenue increased $19.5 million (27.6%) from $70.5 million to $90.0 million.  The increase can be 
attributed to additional revenues from the Big 12 Conference ($6.8 million) and a change in the timing of the 
Williams fund annual pledge drive which resulted in two pledge drives in one fiscal year ($9.4 million). 

• Other operating revenue increased $4.9 million (15.4%) from $31.5 million to $36.4 million. The Medical Center      
renegotiated its contract with the KU Hospital Authority (KUHA) resulting in an increase of $4.5 million.  In 
accordance with the new contract, the Medical Center received more support from KUHA for resident salaries and 
services.   
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Total non-operating revenues increased 5%, from $321.5 million to $337.3 million in 2013.  The breakout of non-operating 
revenues is shown below (in thousands): 
 

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
State appropriations 247,355$          246,738$          
Local appropriations 9,984                9,765                
Gifts 55,516              44,268              
Investment income 11,759              851                   
Non-operating federal grants and contracts 17,143              18,145              
Other non-operating revenues 5,952                12,559              
       Total non-operating revenues 347,709$        332,326$        

 
The following is a brief summary of the significant changes: 
 

• State appropriations, the third largest source of revenue at the University, increased $0.6 million from $246.7 
million to $247.4 million.   

• Gifts increased $11.2 million from $44.3 million to $55.5 million, or 25.4%.  Gifts received consist primarily of 
funds held by the Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA) that are transferred to the university at the 
request of the spending unit.  The level of support from KUEA varies from year to year.  See also Endowment 
Expenses Paid on Behalf of the University.  

• Investment income increased $10.9 million from $0.9 million to $11.8 million.  The University, as well as its 
component units, recognized a significant increase in unrealized gains in comparison to prior years as a result of 
improving economic conditions.  

• Other non-operating revenue decreased $6.6 million from $12.6 million in 2012 to $6.0 million in 2013.  In 2012 
the Kansas University Center for Research Inc. (KUCR) received $5.4 million of  royalty revenue from a patent 
litigation settlement agreement. 

 
Other revenues included the following: 
 

• Capital appropriations and capital gifts decreased $23.1 million from $44.9 million to $21.8 million.  The level of 
capital appropriations and capital gifts varies from year to year based upon funding available for capital projects.  
The majority of this decrease ($28.7 million) was in capital grants and gifts, offset by a increase in capital 
appropriations of $5.6 million.   

 
The composition of these revenues is displayed in the following graph:   
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Expenses 
 
Operating expenses were $1,144.2 million for the 2013 Fiscal Year, an increase from the prior year of $38.8 million (3.5%).  
Overall operating expenses were very consistent with prior year.   The following is a brief summary of the significant 
changes: 
 

• Institutional support increased $9.5 million from $53.6 million to $63.1 million in 2013.  In 2013 the University 
spent $3.6 million more on its Changing for Excellence efficiency project than it did in 2012.  Additionally the 
University spent $5.4 million more than in the prior year in connection with the reimplementation of its human 
resource/payroll system. 

• Operations and maintenance of plant increased $10.8 million from $68.7 million to $79.5 million in 2013.  During 
2013, the University continued its focus on preventative and deferred maintenance programs and many of these 
projects were under the University’s capitalization policy amount.  As such, the projects were expensed to 
operation & maintenance of plant expense. Some of the larger projects in FY 2013 were as follows:  Spencer 
Mueseum of Art water damage $1.2 million, Research and Graduate Studies (RGS) technology incubator $0.9 
million, Campus Master Plan $0.7 million, and Malott Hall fire damage $0.5 million.    

• Other expenses decreased $3.9 million from $9.2 million to $5.3 million.  Similar to other operating revenues, 
other operating expenses include a variety of funding sources and the level of activity in this category varies from 
year to year.   

 
 
Non-operating expenses decreased $2.8 million (12%) from $23.3 million to $20.5 million in 2013 largely because of a 
reduction in interest expense that was achieved through bond refinancing. 
 
The composition of total expenses, including operating and non-operating, is displayed below: 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Extraordinary Items 
 
The University did not have any special and/or extraordinary items in 2013 or 2012. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Endowment Expenses Paid On Behalf of University 
 
The Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA), an independent, not-for-profit organization whose primary 
mission is to raise funds for the University, provides direct and indirect support to the University that is not entirely 
reflected in the University’s Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  Expense items paid on behalf 
of the University by KUEA include expenses such as scholarships and fellowships, salaries, construction, equipment, library 
acquisitions, works of art, and travel.  Total University support provided by KUEA equaled approximately $109.4 million 
and $116.8 million in 2013 and 2012, respectively.   
 
The following support items totaling $40.6 million are reflected in the University’s statements for 2013: 
 

• Capital Projects.  KUEA sponsored many capital projects throughout the year at a cost of $3.1 million, a 
decrease of $1.4 million in 2013.  At the Lawrence campus, the primary capital projects that benefited from 
KUEA’s fundraising efforts included an donation of land valued at $0.9 million, a new facility for the School of 
Engineering’s Ecohawk program ($0.5 million), renovation of the Hall Center for Humanities ($0.4 million), as 
well as various equipment contributions. 

• Salaries and other operating expenses.  KUEA reimbursed the University approximately $37.5 million for 
various faculty and staff salaries, including the University’s distinguished professors, and other minor operating 
expenses.  The salary expense is reflected in the University’s statements as it represents a more accurate reflection 
of the University’s operating expenses.  KUEA’s reimbursement is reflected as a gift to the University within non-
operating revenues. 

 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows presents cash receipts and payments of the University during a period of time.  Its purpose is 
to assess the University’s ability to generate future net cash flows and meet its obligations as they come due.  The following 
is a condensed statement of cash flows for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012: 
 
CASH FLOWS FOR THE PERIOD 
(In thousands of dollars) 
 

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012
Net cash provided (used) by:
  Operating activities (295,307)$         (284,747)$         
  Non-capital financing activities 331,385            326,037            
  Capital and related financing activities (64,646)             (98,619)             
  Investing activities (2,087)               12,950              
Net decrease in cash (30,655)$           (44,379)             

Beginning cash and cash equivalent balances 266,428            310,807            

Ending cash and cash equivalent balances 235,773$        266,428$        

 
 
 

Cash flows from operating activities will always be negative because GASB requires state appropriations to be reported as 
cash flows from non-capital financing activities.  Cash used by operating activities increased $10.3 million (4%).  This 
increase in the use of cash is the result of planned strategic expenses.   
 
Cash flows provided by non-capital financing activities increased by $5.1 million (2%) because of a $11.9 million increase 
in gifts received offset by decrease of $5.5 million in other cash flows.  Fiscal Year 2012 included a one-time  payment in 
connection with the energy performance contracting agreement between the University and Chevron Corporation.  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Cash used by capital and related financing activities decreased by $34.0 million.  This decrease is the result of several items 
including a $9.6 million decrease in cash used for capital asset purchases; an $8.9 million decrease in contributions 
restricted for research facilities renovations because of the completion of an engineering building in 2012; plus certain 
revenue bonds were refinanced in 2012 that resulted in the use of bond reserve funds. The net effect of the refinancing was 
the use of $5.2 million in cash.  No bonds were refinanced in 2013. 
   
Cash flows from investing activities decreased $15.0 million. The decrease in cash provided by investment activity is 
primarily the result of bond refinancing activities in 2012 that were not repeated in 2013. 
 
                                                              

CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
The University made significant investments in capital during the 2013 fiscal year.  Detailed information regarding capital 
asset additions, retirements, and depreciation is available in Note 8 to the financial statements. 
 
The following is a brief summary of the construction projects that were completed during the current fiscal year: 
 

• During 2011, the KU Center for Research Inc. (KUCR) began the project to construct a new building for the 
School of Engineering.  The Measurement, Materials and Sustainable Environment Center (M2SEC) building is an 
interdisciplinary-focused research building that provides the School of Engineering a facility for extensive research 
activities in energy/transportation, global change, composite materials/technology, and sustainable building 
practices.  The $23.3 million project was funded by a combination of KUEA funds, federal ARRA grant funds and 
departmental funds.  The project was completed during Spring 2013.  

 
• During 2009, the University of Kansas Medical Center Research Institute, Inc. (KUMCRI) began a project to 

renovate the Wahl/Hixon Research Complex for Basic and Translational Cancer Research.  The $34.0 million 
project was funded with a combination of grant funding from the Kansas Bioscience Authority (KBA) and by 
revenue bonds which were issued in October 2010.  A $26.4 million, 10 year grant from the KBA provided funds 
for initial construction and will be used to pay debt service on the bonds.  The unrestricted revenues of the 
KUMCRI will fund the debt service when the grant expires.  The project was completed during Spring 2013. 
 

The University was also involved in several construction projects that were under construction or in planning and design 
phases at the end of the fiscal year: 
 

• The planning of the Learned Engineering Expansion Phase II (LEEP 2) project began during 2012.  The project 
will provide 27,000 square feet of modern instructional space, 18,900 square feet of undergraduate program 
support space, tutoring and study areas, and a 17,600 square foot student project center for design/build projects.  
In support of the additional faculty required for the expansion of the instructional program, the expansion also 
includes 37,500 square feet of modern research wet and dry labs and rooms for specialized analytical equipment.  
Total additional building area is 101,000 square feet.  Total estimated cost is $80.6 million and will be funded with 
revenue bonds.  The revenue bonds will be repaid with $35 million provided by the Legislature through the 
University Engineering Expansion Act of 2011, private gifts, and university resources.  The project is estimated to 
be completed June 2015. 

 
• During 2012, the University of Kansas began a project for the renovation of the serving area of Ekdahl Dining 

commons (Mrs. E’s).  Mrs. E’s was built 16 years ago as a central food court for the residence halls on Daisy Hill.  
The renovation entails approximately 5,190 square feet in the serving area and adjacent seating area located to the 
east of the current space.  The total projected cost is $3.4 million and is funded by the University of Kansas 
Memorial Corporation which oversees the dining operations on campus.  Construction is estimated to be completed 
Fall 2013. 

 
• Planning of the Murphy Hall Swarthout Recital Hall Remodel project began during 2013.  The project includes 

new seating, acoustical improvements, as well as upgraded lighting and audio systems of the Swarthout Recital 
Hall.  The project is budgeted for $1.5 million to be funded by private gifts.  Construction is estimated to be 
completed Spring 2015. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
 
At June 30, 2013, the University and its affiliated corporations had $356.8 million in revenue bond debt outstanding.  In 
Fiscal Year 2013, the University did not issue any new debt.   
 
At June 30, 2012, the University and its affiliated corporations had $376.5  million in revenue bond debt outstanding.  In 
Fiscal Year 2012, the University issued new debt in the amount of $82.7 million for the following projects: 
 

• $7.4 million to refinance the Lawrence Campus’ 1999C, 2002A-2 and 2002K bond issuances. 
• $41.8 million to refinance the Medical Center’s 2003C and 2003J-1 bond issuances.   
• $29.7 million to refinance the University of Kansas Center for Research, Inc. 2005B bond issuance. 
• $3.8 million bond anticipation note for the School of Engineering LEEP 2 project. 

 
In Fiscal Year 2013, the University and its affiliated corporations paid $33.5 million in principal and interest payments 
related to all outstanding revenue bonds. 
 
In October 2013, Moody’s Investor Service assigned an overall rating of Aa1 to the University.  Standard and Poors 
assigned a rating of AA.  More detailed information about the University’s revenue bonds is available in Notes 10 and 11 to 
the financial statements. 
 
 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK   
 
Estimates for State of Kansas revenues prepared by the Consensus Revenue Estimating Group show a reduction for the 
coming fiscal year 2014, and growth of 1% over the fiscal year 2014 forecast for fiscal year 2015.  During the 2013 
legislative session, a two-year budget was passed and signed by the governor. The state budget allotment for the University 
represented a decrease in general state appropriations of $6.9 million (2.6%) for fiscal year 2014 and maintains that level of 
funding for fiscal year 2015.  The current reduction in state revenues is a result from income tax rate reductions enacted at 
the beginning of calendar year 2013; state revenues in future years are uncertain dependent upon the effects of those income 
tax cuts. For fiscal year 2013, state appropriations represented 21% of overall University revenues.   
 
The University continues to be focused on its five-year strategic plan known as Bold Aspirations. Bold Aspirations 
represents the university’s highest priorities and guides budget priorities. Six broad goals include undergraduate education, 
doctoral education, research, broad scholarly engagement, faculty and staff performance, and stewardship of fiscal and 
physical resources. In alignment with the strategic plan, the University is also engaged in a thorough review and realignment 
of business practices, known as Changing for Excellence. Administrative savings generated by Changing for Excellence are 
being invested in Bold Aspirations.  
 
The strategic plan at Medical Center was implemented in 2011 with one overarching goal that is to provide leadership to 
shape the future of health and health care.  The plan has nine mission-specific and institutional goals including strengthening 
research quality and impact, achieving strategic clinical mission growth, elevating and aligning outreach and community 
engagement, continuously advancing educational excellence, and others. 
 
During the Fall 2013 semester, 27,784 students enrolled at KU.  This was a decrease of 155 students when compared to Fall 
2012.  Given this decrease as well as projected decreases in Kansas high school graduation rates by the Western Interstate 
Commission on Higher Education (WICHE), a key focus of Bold Aspirations is increased undergraduate enrollment, 
increased student retention, and increased graduation rates for undergraduates.  The university has overhauled its 
recruitment of students as part of Changing for Excellence. To boost retention, the Office of First-Year Experience has been 
established to manage New Student Orientation, Hawk Week, Hawk Days, PRE 101, First-Year Seminars, Learning 
Communities and the KU Common Book.  The University will also be putting in place new, higher admission requirements 
(effective in 2016) to help ensure students arrive at KU with the skills necessary to succeed.  In regards to the management 
of tuition funds, assessments and collections of tuition are monitored on an ongoing basis to assure that the current year 
budget reflects a realistic estimate of tuition revenue. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The University continues to focus on federal, state and private sponsored research opportunities.  One significant highlight 
that will have an impact on the future is the KU Cancer Center achieving National Cancer Institute designation in July 2012.  
The NCI designation is the highest recognition for an academic cancer center.  Achieving this designation is expected to 
create opportunities to expand research funding, generate more jobs, and, most importantly, provide the most advanced 
cancer care to patients.  
 
The University is not aware of any additional currently known facts, decisions, or conditions that are expected to have 
significant effect on the financial position or results of operations during this fiscal year beyond those unknown variations 
having a global effect on virtually all types of business operations. 

 
 
 
 

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank) 
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THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012  
 

2013 2012
ASSETS
Current assets:
  Cash and cash equivalents 226,102,479$           253,786,740$           
  Investments 56,728,988               55,275,547               
  Accounts receivable, net 76,574,989               75,535,657               
  Pledges receivable, net 14,304,712               8,607,350                 
  Loans to students, net 10,854,403               9,060,452                 
  Inventories 8,175,743                 8,543,253                 
  Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,947,835                 5,883,204                 

Total current assets 398,689,149             416,692,203             

Non-current assets:
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,670,659                 12,641,203               
  Accounts receivable, net 3,859,907                 980,744                    
  Pledges receivable, net 6,517,119                 7,871,171                 
  Endowment investments 74,363,412               71,550,781               
  Other investments 48,451,870               42,523,322               
  Loans to students, net 16,463,400               16,622,412               
  Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,262,611                 5,443,628                 
  Capital assets, net 1,072,379,554          1,085,263,009          

Total non-current assets 1,236,968,532          1,242,896,270          
Total assets 1,635,657,681          1,659,588,473          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
  Unamortized loss on bond refunding - current 425,063                    425,063                    
  Unamortized loss on bond refunding - non-current 3,135,792                 3,560,855                 

3,560,855                 3,985,918                 

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 67,744,885               68,304,598               
  Deferred revenue 57,420,544               52,073,224               
  Deposits held in custody for others 809,710                    835,058                    
  Accrued compensated absences – current portion 31,618,601               37,639,179               
  Capital leases payable - current portion 754,589                    884,306                    
  Notes payable – current portion 654,075                    651,473                    
  Revenue bonds payable - current portion 23,415,000               19,650,000               
  Unamortized loss on bond refunding -                                -                                
  Other liabilities 919,337                    919,336                    

Total current liabilities 183,336,741             180,957,174             

Non-current liabilities:
  Accrued compensated absences 5,931,222                 9,390,609                 
  Accrued other post-employment benefits 25,747,000               21,798,000               
  Capital leases payable 12,747,248               12,330,321               
  Notes payable 7,805,880                 7,867,634                 
  Revenue bonds payable 333,430,000             356,845,000             
  Other long-term liabilities 10,542,912               11,462,248               

Total non-current liabilities 396,204,262             419,693,812             
Total liabilities 579,541,003             600,650,986             

DEFERRED INFLOWS -                                -                                

NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 734,806,221             717,161,276             
Restricted for:
  Nonexpendable 52,012,039               55,557,684               
  Expendable:   

Scholarships, research, instruction and other 49,038,297               43,979,113               
Loans 21,538,340               27,839,910               
Capital projects 19,166,131               15,656,655               
Debt service 13,417,800               12,896,862               

Unrestricted 169,698,705             189,831,905             
Total net position 1,059,677,533$        1,062,923,405$        

See accompanying notes to financial statements.  
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THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS  

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 
 

2013 2012
OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowances of $23,863,131 in 2013
   and  $23,141,027 in 2012) 262,514,993$           249,767,082$           
Federal grants and contracts 183,108,926             206,510,534             
State and local grants and contracts 31,170,783               30,817,307               
Non-Federal grants and contracts 57,088,338               53,454,587               
Sales and services of educational departments 56,940,504               62,441,536               
Auxiliary enterprises:
  Housing 22,579,743               20,031,681               
  Athletics 89,969,024               70,534,906               
  Parking and transit 13,434,651               13,637,805               
  Student unions 35,341,331               33,362,787               
  University health services 8,676,445                 8,832,972                 
  Other auxiliary enterprises 4,005,224                 4,428,148                 
Other operating revenues 25,989,486               21,365,004               
      Total operating revenues 790,819,448             775,184,349             

OPERATING EXPENSES
Instruction 361,540,938             351,399,809             
Research 270,285,126             261,119,127             
Public service 37,186,824               35,623,906               
Academic support 58,440,078               57,065,914               
Student services 28,459,196               31,669,948               
Institutional support 63,054,159               53,606,821               
Operations and maintenance of plant 79,475,873               68,738,356               
Depreciation 69,887,048               66,303,454               
Scholarships and fellowships 27,709,149               30,098,494               
Auxiliary enterprises:
    Housing 14,330,870               14,886,726               
    Athletics 76,134,424               74,537,259               
    Parking and transit 6,624,418                 6,943,955                 
    Student unions 33,693,173               30,782,560               
    University health services 7,396,040                 7,641,807                 
    Other auxiliary enterprises 4,750,166                 5,852,484                 
Other operating expenses 5,254,427                 9,150,167                 
      Total operating expenses 1,144,221,909          1,105,420,787          

        Operating loss (353,402,461)            (330,236,438)            

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations 247,355,039             246,737,480             
Local appropriations 9,983,800                 9,765,040                 
Gifts 55,515,609               44,267,410               
Investment income 11,759,451               851,321                    
Federal grants and contracts 17,143,188               18,145,307               
Other non-operating revenues 5,951,695                 12,559,203               
Interest expense (16,227,890)              (17,597,841)              
Other non-operating expenses (4,318,833)                (5,682,371)                
    Net non-operating revenues (expenses) 327,162,059             309,045,549             

        Income before other revenues, expenses, gains, or losses (26,240,402)              (21,190,889)              

Capital appropriations 11,043,818               5,419,692                 
Capital grants and gifts (expense) 10,785,751               39,487,299               
Additions to permanent endowments 1,164,961                 642,245                    
        Increase (decrease) in net position (3,245,872)                24,358,347               

NET POSITION
Net position - beginning of year 1,062,923,405          1,038,565,058          
Net position - end of year 1,059,677,533$        1,062,923,405$        
See accompanying notes to financial statements  
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THE UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 
 

2013 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and fees 260,983,454$           248,657,693$           
Sales and services of educational activities 56,613,427               62,509,810               
Auxiliary enterprises:
    Housing 7,381,339                 3,652,370                 
    Athletics 7,455,353                 3,251,075                 
    Parking and transit 8,938,829                 6,693,056                 
    Student unions 1,972,877                 2,980,511                 
    University health services 1,321,449                 1,164,227                 
    Other auxiliary enterprises (268,045)                   (1,245,373)                
Grants and contracts 275,404,564             273,638,462             
Payments to suppliers (211,791,015)            (224,618,673)            
Payments to utilities (22,769,950)              (23,091,267)              
Compensation and benefits (657,463,305)            (652,934,093)            
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (27,709,149)              (20,962,699)              
Loans issued to students and employees (4,495,023)                (1,049,174)                
Collection of loans to students 4,185,240                 2,365,981                 
Other receipts 4,932,958                 34,240,975               
        Net cash used by operating activities (295,306,997)            (284,747,119)            

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations 247,355,039             246,467,908             
Local appropriations 9,983,800                 9,765,040                 
Gifts 58,187,480               46,297,107               
Agency transactions (25,348)                     (675,904)                   
Federal education loan receipts 138,394,635             147,317,620             
Federal education loan disbursements (139,280,758)            (146,569,067)            
Non-operating grants and contracts 16,713,793               17,845,307               
Other 56,170                      5,588,860                 
        Net cash provided by non-capital financing activities 331,384,811             326,036,871             

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from revenue bond defeasance -                                86,002,849               
Proceeds from capital debt 2,100,064                 3,408,331                 
Capital appropriations 15,738,568               11,680,429               
Purchases of capital assets (48,590,883)              (58,142,415)              
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,361,986                 (1,358,087)                
Principal paid by revenue bond defesance -                                (91,163,146)              
Principal paid on capital debt and leases (22,104,284)              (26,045,589)              
Interest paid on capital debt and leases (16,415,876)              (16,570,471)              
Contributions restricted for research facilities renovations 2,640,000                 (6,257,224)                
Other 624,632                    (173,233)                   
        Net cash used by capital financing activities (64,645,793)              (98,618,556)              

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 72,279,873               106,084,548             
Interest on investments 6,767,654                 5,883,165                 
Purchase of investments (81,134,353)              (99,017,738)              
        Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (2,086,826)                12,949,975               

Net decrease in cash (30,654,805)              (44,378,829)              

Cash - beginning of the year 266,427,943             310,806,772             
Cash - end of year 235,773,138$           266,427,943$           
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 
(CONTINUED)  
 

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 2013 2012
Operating loss (353,402,461)$          (330,236,438)$          
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash   
    provided (used) by operating activities:
  Non-cash revenue (2,515,873)                (2,797,232)                
  Depreciation expense 70,009,982               66,303,454               
  Changes in assets and liabilities:
      Accounts receivables, net (12,889,776)              (4,884,461)                
      Pledges receivable, net (4,343,310)                (1,039,834)                
      Loans to students, net 4,183,484                 617,811                    
      Inventories 367,510                    (910,559)                   
      Prepaid expenses and other assets 95,510                      (944,570)                   
      Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,129,459)                (24,115,381)              
      Deferred revenue 2,331,448                 6,715,715                 
      Accrued compensated absences (4,978,924)                3,366,483                 
      Accrued other post-employment benefits 6,964,872                 3,177,893                 
        Net cash provided used by operating activities: (295,306,997)$          (284,747,119)$          

Non-cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Gifts-In-Kind 10,610,104$             39,768,674$             
Net Change in Unrealized Gains and Losses (5,977,662)$              9,272,807$               

See accompanying notes to financial statements                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                             

15 
 



 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America, with the exception of GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations 
Are Component Units.  The University has made the decision not to include the Kansas University Endowment Association 
(KUEA) within the University’s financial statements.  These financial statements have not been audited. 
 
In preparing financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, management is required to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets 
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Organization.  The University of Kansas (the “University”) is a comprehensive institution providing undergraduate, 
graduate, and professional education in a variety of academic programs.  The University is a Public Doctoral/Research 
University - Extensive and is accredited by the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools.  The University is 
governed by the Kansas Board of Regents and is an agency of the State of Kansas.  As an agency of the State of Kansas, the 
University is included in the audited financial report of the State of Kansas. 
 
The University conducts education, research, public service, and related activities at: the main campus in Lawrence, Kansas, 
the Edwards Campus in Overland Park, Kansas, and the Medical Center campuses in Kansas City, Kansas, Salina, Kansas, 
and Wichita, Kansas.  
 
For Fall 2012, the Lawrence and Edwards’s campuses had an undergraduate enrollment of 18,708 and a graduate/first 
professional enrollment of 5,869.  The Medical Center had an undergraduate enrollment of 432 and a graduate/first 
professional (including medical residents, fellows and trainees) enrollment of 2,930.  Enrollment at all campuses was 27,939 
students. 
 
Financial Reporting Entity.  As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
these financial statements present the combined financial position and financial activities of all of the University’s campuses 
and the following blended component units for which the University is financially accountable: the University of Kansas 
Center for Research, Inc. (KUCR), Kansas Athletics, Inc. (Athletics), the University of Kansas Memorial Corporation (KU 
Unions), the University of Kansas Medical Center Research Institute Inc. (KUMCRI), the Student Union Corporation of the 
University of Kansas Medical Center, and Kansas University Health Partners, Inc.   
 
The financial activity and balances of the Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA) as noted above are not 
included.  The financial activity and balances of Studio 804, Inc., the Kansas University Alumni Association, Kansas 
University Physicians, Inc. (KUPI) and the University of Kansas Hospital Authority are not included in the financial 
statements of the University as they are legally separate entities and do not meet the requirements of GASB Statement No. 
39 to be included. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, all significant transactions and balances between campuses and blended component 
units have been eliminated to avoid overstatement of 1) revenues and expenses on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, 
and Changes in Net Position, and 2) balances on the Statement of Net Position. 
 
Basis of Accounting.  For financial reporting purposes, the University is considered a special-purpose government engaged 
only in business-type activities.  Accordingly, the University’s financial statements have been presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when 
earned, and expenses are recorded when an obligation has been incurred.  All significant intra-agency transactions have 
been eliminated. 
 
The University has the option to apply all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) pronouncements issued after 
November 30, 1989, unless FASB conflicts with GASB.  The University has elected to not apply FASB pronouncements 
issued after the applicable date. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
Cash Equivalents.  For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, the University considers all highly liquid investments 
with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.  At certain times, some of the University’s 
component units maintain cash balances in excess of FDIC limits.  Management has evaluated the financial stability of these 
financial institutions and feels the risk to the component units is minimal. 
 
Investments.  The University accounts for its investments at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.  Changes in unrealized 
gain (loss) on the carrying value of investments are reported as a component of investment income in the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
 
Accounts Receivable.  Accounts receivable consists of tuition and fees charged to students and auxiliary enterprise services 
provided to students, faculty, and staff.  Accounts receivable also include amounts due from the Federal government, state 
and local governments, or private sources, in connection with reimbursement of allowable expenditures made pursuant to 
the University’s grants and contracts.  Accounts receivable are recorded net of estimated uncollectible amounts. 
 
Inventories.  Inventories are carried at cost. 
 
Prepaid Expenses.  Prepaid expenses consist primarily of deferred charges related to revenue bond issuances as well as 
deferred summer school expenses. 
 
Capital Assets.  Capital assets are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair market value at the date of donation in 
the case of gifts.  For equipment, the University’s capitalization policy includes all items with a unit cost $5,000 or more, 
and an estimated useful life greater than one year.  Renovations to buildings, infrastructure, and land improvements that 
significantly increase the value or extend the useful life of the structure are capitalized if the related project cost exceeds 
$100,000.  Routine repairs and maintenance are charged to operating expense in the year in which the expense was incurred. 
 
Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, 25 years for land 
improvements, 8 years for non-IT equipment, 5 years for vehicles, and 3 years for IT equipment.  Depreciation for buildings 
and infrastructure is computed using a componentized building and infrastructure depreciation study.  Note – The estimated 
useful lives used by the blended component units for equipment, building improvements and buildings, ranging from 3 to 40 
years, vary slightly from the University’s policy.  The financial impact of the variation is considered to be immaterial to the 
financials statements as a whole.   
 
Costs incurred during construction of long-lived assets are recorded as construction in progress and are not depreciated until 
placed in service. The University did not capitalize any interest in 2013 or 2012. 
 
Deferred Revenues.  Deferred revenues include amounts received for tuition and fees and certain auxiliary activities prior 
to the end of the fiscal year but related to the subsequent accounting period.  Deferred revenues also include summer school 
tuition not earned during the current year and amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not yet been 
earned. 
 
Compensated Absences.  Employee unused vacation pay is accrued at year-end for financial statement purposes.  The 
liability and expense incurred are recorded at year-end as accrued compensated absences in the Statement of Net Position, 
and as an expense in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. 
 
Deposits Held In Custody For Others.  Deposits held in custody for others consist primarily of student organizations’ 
moneys administered by the University. 
 
Non-current Liabilities.  Non-current liabilities include principal amounts of notes and revenue bonds payable, capital 
lease obligations with contractual maturities greater than one year, and estimated amounts for accrued compensated 
absences and accrued other postemployment benefits that will not be paid within the next fiscal year.   
 

17 
 



 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
Deferred Inflows/Outflows.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 63, deferred outflows and deferred inflows result 
from the transactions of the consumption or acquisition of net assets in one period that are applicable to future periods.  
These items are reported separately from assets and liabilities.  With the adoption of this new GASB statement in fiscal year 
2013 (reclassified fiscal year 2012 financials), the unamortized loss on bond refunding has been reclassified from a negative 
liability to a deferred outflow. 
 
Net Position.  The University’s net position classified as follows: 
 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt:  This represents the University’s total investment in capital assets, net of 
outstanding debt obligations related to those capital assets.  To the extent debt has been incurred but not yet expended 
for capital assets, such amounts are not included as a component of “invested in capital assets, net of related debt.” 

  
Restricted net position – non-expendable:  Restricted non-expendable net position consist of endowment and similar 
type funds in which donors or other outside sources have stipulated, as a condition of the gift instrument, that the 
principal is to be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity, and invested for the purpose of producing present and future 
income, which may either be expended or added to principal. 

 
Restricted net position – expendable:  Restricted expendable net position include resources for which the University is 
legally or contractually obligated to spend in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties. 

 
Unrestricted net position:  Unrestricted net position represent resources derived from student tuition and fees, state 
appropriations, and sales and services of educational departments.  These resources are used for transactions relating to 
the educational and general operations of the University, and may be used at the discretion of the University to meet 
current expenses for any purpose.  These resources also include auxiliary enterprises, which are substantially self-
supporting activities that provide services for students, faculty, and staff. 

 
Tax Status.  As a state institution of higher education, the income of the University is generally exempt from federal and 
state income taxes under Section 115(a) of the Internal Revenue Code; however, income generated from activities unrelated 
to the University’s exempt purpose is subject to income taxes under Internal Revenue Code Section 511(a)(2)(B). 
 
Classification of Revenues.  The University has classified its revenues as either operating or non-operating revenues 
according to the following criteria: 
 

Operating revenues:  Operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of exchange transactions, such 
as 1) student tuition and fees, net of scholarship discounts and allowances, 2) sales and services of auxiliary enterprises, 
3) most federal, state, and local grants and contracts, and 4) interest on institutional student loans. 

 
Non-operating revenues:  Non-operating revenues include activities that have the characteristics of non-exchange 
transactions, such as gifts and contributions, and other revenue sources that are defined as non-operating revenues by 
GASB Statement No. 9, Reporting Cash Flows of Proprietary and Non-expendable Trust Funds and Governmental 
Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, and GASB Statement No. 34, such as state appropriations and 
investment income. 

 
Scholarship Discounts and Allowances.  Student tuition and fee revenues, and certain other revenues from students, are 
reported net of scholarship discounts and allowances in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position.  
Scholarship discounts and allowances are the difference between the stated charge for goods and services provided by the 
University, and the amount that is paid by students and/or third parties making payments on the students’ behalf.  Certain 
governmental grants, such as Pell grants, and other federal, state, or non-governmental programs, are recorded as either 
operating or non-operating revenues in the University’s financial statements.  To the extent that revenues from such 
programs are used to satisfy tuition and fees and other student charges, the University has recorded a scholarship discount 
and allowance. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
Contributions.  Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are accrued at estimated fair value at the date each 
promise is received.   
 
Reclassifications.  Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 financial statements to conform to the 2013 
financial statement presentation.  These reclassifications had no effect on the change in net position.  
 
 
NOTE 2 – DEPOSITS 
 
SUMMARY OF CARRYING VALUES 
 
The carrying values of deposits and investments shown below are included in the Statement of Net Position as follows: 

2013 2012
Carrying value:
  Deposits 211,268,357$   268,412,506$      
  Investments 204,049,051     167,365,087        

415,317,408$   435,777,593$      

Included in the following Statement of Net Position line items:
  Cash and cash equivalents 226,102,479$   253,786,740$      
  Investments 56,728,988        55,275,547          
  Restricted cash and cash equivalents (non-current) 9,670,659          12,641,203          
  Endowment investments (non-current) 74,363,412        71,550,781          
  Other investments (non-current) 48,451,870        42,523,322          

415,317,408$   435,777,593$      
 

At June 30, 2013 the University carried deposits as shown below: 
2013

Investment Type Fair Value
Cash deposits with State Treasury 182,133,280$      
Cash deposits with financial institutions 23,546,295          
Certificates of deposit 796,789               
Money market funds 4,791,993            

211,268,357$      
  

The deposits reflected above were held by the following entities as of June 30: 
2013 2012

KU Lawrence and Edwards Campuses 148,354,101$   166,708,072$      
Kansas Athletics, Inc. 3,351,394          4,538,861            
KU Center for Research, Inc. * (1,046,496)         1,384,457            
KU Memorial Corporation 3,811,859          2,525,347            
KU Medical Center 49,059,096        57,824,818          
KU Medical Center Research Institute 6,491,638          33,655,458          
Student Union Corporation of KUMC 1,040,657          1,315,270            
Kansas University Health Partners, Inc. 206,108             460,223               

211,268,357$   268,412,506$      

 
* The University of Kansas Center for Research, Inc. utilizes an overnight repurchase agreement for its bank 

deposits to maximize investment return.  At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the overnight repurchase agreement 
amounted to $18,127,595 and $12,969,445, respectively, and its carrying value is included in the 
investments above.  The repurchase agreement balance is included in “cash and cash equivalents” on the 
Statement of Net Position at year-end.   
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
State law requires the University (Lawrence Campus, Edwards Campus, and the Medical Center campuses - in Kansas City, 
Salina and Wichita) to deposit the majority of its cash balances with the State Treasurer, who holds and invests the funds.  
The exceptions to this law are any funds maintained in the University’s imprest fund, organizational safekeeping, revenue 
bond project and reserve funds, and any funds held by external entities on behalf of the University.  
 
Cash balances maintained by the State Treasurer are pooled and are held in a general checking account and other special 
purpose bank accounts.  The available cash balances beyond immediate need are pooled for short-term investment purposes 
by the Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) and are reported at fair value, based on quoted market prices. 
 
The majority of University deposit balances not maintained by the State Treasurer are covered by FDIC or collateralized.  
The University does not have a formal deposit policy regarding custodial credit risk.  However, management has evaluated 
the financial stability of the financial institutions involved and feels the custodial credit risk is minimal. 
  
 
NOTE 3 - INVESTMENTS 
 
At June 30, 2013, the University carried investments as shown below: 
 

2013
Investment Type Fair Value
US Treasury obligations 3,514,255            
US Agency obligations 35,435,339          
Corporate bonds 4,150,140            
Fixed mutual funds 1,622,489            
Domestic stock 3,354,232            
Hedge Funds 982,243               
Equity mutual funds 8,511,813            
Limited liability companies 528,187               
Other 30,584,814          
Repurchase agreements 18,520,845          
Guaranteed investment contracts 5,078,062            
Pooled Money Investment Board 1,043,988            
External investment pools
     KUEA Short-term Investment 11,872,702          
     KUEA Long-term Investment 78,849,942          

204,049,051$      

 
The investments reflected above were held by the following entities as of June 30: 
 

2013 2012
University of Kansas Lawrence and Edwards Campuses 59,266,716$     64,453,659$        
Kansas Athletics, Inc. 46,308,368        40,414,461          
KU Center for Research, Inc. 51,046,926        39,404,915          
KU Memorial Corporation 67,599                60,311                 
KU Medical Center 5,422,872          5,819,938            
KU Medical Center Research Institute 41,936,570        17,211,803          

204,049,051$   167,365,087$      
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
INVESTMENT POLICY 
 
State statutes govern the University’s investment policies.  For investments related to the University’s revenue bonds, state 
statutes authorize cash balances to be invested as permitted by bond documents and bond covenants.  The Kansas 
Development Finance Authority (KDFA) manages the University’s revenue bond investments.  Allowable investments 
include: 
 

• U.S. Government obligations 
• Obligations of government-sponsored agencies 
• Federal funds, unsecured certificates of deposit, time deposits, and banker’s acceptances 
• Deposits – fully insured by FDIC 
• Certain State or municipal debt obligations 
• Certain pre-refunded municipal obligations 
• Commercial paper 
• Investments in money market funds 
• Repurchase agreements 
• Stripped securities 
• Investments in the Municipal Investment Pool Fund 
• Investment agreements 
• Guaranteed investment contracts 

 
State statutes also govern the investment policies of the PMIB.  The primary objectives are to attain safety, liquidity, and 
yield.  Allowable investments for State pooled moneys not held in Kansas financial institutions are as follows: 
 

• Direct obligations of, or obligations that are insured as to principal and interest by, the U.S. Government or any 
direct agency thereof, with maturities up to four years 

• Obligations and securities of United States sponsored enterprises that under federal law may be accepted as 
security for public funds.  Moneys available for investments shall not be invested in mortgage-backed securities of 
such enterprises, which include the Government National Mortgage Association 

• Repurchase agreements with Kansas banks or with primary government securities dealers 
• Interfund loans to various State agencies as mandated by the Kansas Legislature limited to not more than the lesser 

of 10 percent or $80,000,000 of total investments 
• Certain Kansas agency and IMPACT Act projects and bonds 
• Linked deposit loans for agricultural production not to exceed $55,000,000 
• High grade commercial paper 

 
The Finance Committee of the Kansas University Endowment Association (KUEA) Board of Trustees oversees investments 
in KUEA’s investment programs.  The Finance Committee develops guidelines and procedures for investment programs, in 
accordance with the policies established by the Executive Committee.   
 
The KUEA Short-term Investment Program is designed for short-term, highly liquid investing needs.  KUEA invests the idle 
cash balances in individual fund accounts by pooling them into a short-term investment program to produce a net investment 
yield.  The total investment yield, less distributions of earnings to certain accounts, is retained by KUEA and is allocated to 
the unrestricted net asset classification to defray administrative costs. 
 
The KUEA Long-term Investment Program is designed for investing endowed funds and other types of funds with similar 
long-term objectives.  These funds are collectively invested in a diversified long-term portfolio that is professionally 
managed by firms chosen by KUEA for their expertise in specialized portfolio management.  Funds participating in the 
long-term investment portfolio receive regular distributions that are available for immediate spending in accordance with 
KUEA’s established spending policy. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
The Executive Committee as well as the Finance and Audit Committee of KUCR oversee KUCR investments.  Per KUCR 
investment policy, investments are limited to money market funds, U.S. Treasury obligations (Bills, Notes, Bonds), U.S. 
Government Agency obligations, corporate obligations rated ‘A-‘ or better, equity mutual funds, exchange traded funds, 
stocks sold on major international exchanges such as NYSE, ASE, and NASDAQ, and fully collateralized repurchase 
agreements.  Asset allocation targets are reviewed quarterly by the Investment Committee and at least semi-annually by the 
Finance and Audit Committee and the Executive Committee. 
 
Athletics investment policy limits investments to money market accounts, certificates of deposit, U.S. Treasury obligations 
(Bills, Notes, Bonds), and investments with KUEA. 
 
KU Unions does not have a formal investment policy.  Operational reserves are invested in short-term certificates of deposit 
or government securities as directed by the Executive Board.   
 
The Board of Directors and Finance Committee of KUMC Research Institute Inc. (KUMCRI) oversee the KUMCRI's 
investment policy.   Per KUMCRI investment policy investments in fixed income investments are through direct ownership 
of the financial investments held by the KUMCRI in a laddered portfolio, and for equities within a mutual fund. Investments 
will be made by the Treasurer within the guidelines of the investment policy.  The Finance Committee reviews the portfolio 
quarterly.  KUMCRI investment policy limits fixed income investments to Certificates of Deposit, U.S. Treasury or Agency 
obligations and no more than 10% of portfolio in equities. Certificates of Deposit may not exceed the FDIC limit for any 
one bank.    

 
 

INTEREST RATE RISK 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  The University 
does not have a formal investment policy that leverages investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair 
value losses arising from changing interest rates.  The University has historically held its fixed income securities until 
maturity, thus limiting the University’s interest rate risk exposure. 
 
For revenue bond investments managed by KDFA, because of the tax-exempt status of the bonds, it is generally the practice 
of KDFA and University management to match reserve fund interest rates to the arbitrage yield on the bonds, and the term 
of the investments to the maturity of the bonds.  For invested loan funds, KDFA generally invests to maximize the interest 
rate and sets a term of investment based on estimated expenditures, which is generally 3 – 5 years. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
The University had the following investments and maturities at June 30, 2013: 
 

Investment Type      Fair Value     Less than 1         1-5          6-10          More than 10
Investments with Maturity Date:  
US Treasury obligations 3,514,255$          1,391,763$          2,122,492$          -$                         -$                           
US Agency obligations 35,435,339          3,414,432            27,458,777          2,846,086            1,716,044              
Corporate bonds 4,150,140            100,256               3,571,435            478,449               -                             
Repurchase agreements 18,520,845          18,520,845          -                           -                           -                             
Guaranteed investment contracts 5,078,062            -                           -                           -                           5,078,062              
Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB) 1,043,988            -                           -                           -                           1,043,988              
Other 24,801,524          -                           17,600,223          -                           7,201,301              
External investment pools
     KUEA Short-term Investment Program 11,872,702          11,872,702          -                           -                           -                             

104,416,855$      35,299,998$        50,752,927$        3,324,535$          15,039,395$          
Investments not subject to maturity dates:
Fixed mutual funds 1,622,489            
Domestic stock 3,354,232            
Hedge Funds 982,243               
Equity mutual funds 8,511,813            
Limited liability companies 528,187               
Other 5,783,290            
External investment pools
     KUEA Long-term Investment Program* 78,849,942          

99,632,196          
204,049,051$      

* KUEA's Long-term investment program is invested in approximately 80% equities (no maturity date).

Investment Maturities (in years)

 
 
 
CREDIT RISK 
 
Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The University 
holds investments that may have credit risk since the underlying securities may include securities other than those that take 
the form of U.S. Treasuries or obligations explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government.  Certain investments have an 
underlying collateral agreement.   
 
As of June 30, 2013, the University held the following investments as rated by Standard and Poor’s and/or Moody’s: 
 

  Credit Quality Rating Fair Value % of Total
  AAA/Govt 22,004,796$        10.8%
  AA+/Govt 21,500,799          10.5%
  AA+/AA/AA- 962,314               0.5%
  A+/A/A- 3,708,822            1.8%
  B+/B/B- 1,993,986            1.0%
  Not Rated 153,878,334        75.4%

204,049,051$      100.0%
 

 
The investments in the “Not Rated” category include investments in KUEA’s Short-term and Long-term Investment 
Programs (external investment pools are not required to be rated), the State’s Pooled Money Investment Board (PMIB), as 
well as the University’s bond related guaranteed investment contracts and repurchase agreements managed by KDFA. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
CUSTODIAL CREDIT RISK 
 
The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counter party, the University will 
not be able to recover the value of the investments that are in the possession of an outside party.  Custodial credit risk 
should not be confused with market risk, which is the risk that the market value of a security may decline.  The University’s 
investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured and unregistered and held by the 
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the University’s name.   
 
The investment policies of the University and its component units do not formally address custodial credit risk.  
Nonetheless, the University’s custodial credit risk is estimated to be minimal because of several factors.  First, investments 
in external investment pools and in open-end mutual funds is not exposed to custodial credit risk because their existence is 
not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form.  As noted above, the majority of the University’s 
investments are invested within KUEA’s Short-term and Long-term Investment Programs.  Second, management has 
evaluated the stability of the financial institutions through which other investments are made.  Generally the financial 
institutions are members of the Depository Trust Company (DTC), the world’s largest depository and a member of the 
Federal Reserve System.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for securities deposited with the DTC by DTC 
participants.  DTC facilitates settlement of transactions through electronic book-entry transfers and pledges between the 
DTC participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Additionally the 
financial institutions hold the assets in custody or trust so that they would not be available to the institution’s creditors 
because they are excluded from the assets of the custodian.   
 
The KUMCRI has made minimal investments directly in limited partnerships, which would have some custodial risk.  The 
balance of these investments as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $528,187 and $529,522, respectively.  
 
 
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single issuer that 
exceeds 5 percent or more of its total investments.  Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government and 
investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are excluded from this requirement.  
The University does not have a formal policy regarding the concentration of credit risk.  However, management has 
evaluated the financial stability of the financial institutions involved and believes the credit risk is minimal. 
 
Of the University of Kansas’ total investments of $204,049,051 and $167,365,087 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, 
respectively; the University of Kansas Endowment Association administers $90,722,644 and $84,979,380 espectively.  The 
Kansas Development Finance Authority invests $1,959,299 and $2,077,437 million of the total as of June 30, 2013 and 
2012, respectively.  These monies represent bond proceeds and reserve requirements.   
 
The University investments also include $21,659,141 and $20,252,734 of investments administered by outside trustees as of 
June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  These investments consist of three accounts:  1) the Gertrude S. Pearson Trust, 2) the 
Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for Watkins and Miller Scholarship Halls, and 3) the Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for Watkins 
Hospital. 
 

The Gertrude S. Pearson Trust had a reported market value of $16,148,676 at June 30, 2013 and 
$14,988,586 at June 30, 2012.  The trustee is Bank of America. 
 
The Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for Watkins and Miller Scholarship Halls had a reported market value of    
$3,561,551 at June 30, 2013 and $3,396,362 at June 30, 2012.  The trustee is Bank of America. 
 
The Elizabeth M. Watkins Trust for Watkins Hospital had a reported market value of $1,948,914 at June 
30, 2013 and $1,867,786 at June 30, 2012.  The trustee is Bank of America. 

 
The remaining investments consist of $89,707,967 and $60,055,536 invested in a combination of short-term and long-term 
investments, primarily US Agency obligations. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
NOTE 4 – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Accounts receivable net of estimated uncollectible amounts, consisted of the following at June 30:                        

 
2013 2012

Tuition and Fees 13,523,586$     11,303,669$        
Auxiliary 41,945,905        43,664,207          
Grants and Contracts 13,300,759        12,650,514          
Other 11,664,646        8,898,011            

80,434,896$     76,516,401$        

 
 
NOTE 5 – PLEDGES RECEIVABLE 
 
Pledges receivable consist of the following unconditional promises to give: 

2013 2012
Due in less than one year 15,329,462$     9,452,884$          
Due in one to five years 7,106,396          7,340,237            
Due in more than five years -                           1,397,250            

22,435,858        18,190,371          
Less
  Unamortized discount 589,277             866,316               
  Allowance for uncollectible amounts 1,024,750          845,534               

20,821,831$     16,478,521$        

 
 

Pledges receivable are recorded on the accompanying statements of financial position as follows: 

 
2013 2012

Pledges receivable - current 14,304,712$     8,607,350$          
Pledges receivable - non-current 6,517,119          7,871,171            

20,821,831$     16,478,521$        
 

 
 
NOTE 6 – INVENTORIES 
 
Inventories consisted of the following at June 30: 
 

2013 2012
Bookstore 3,485,142$        4,471,196$          
Food Service 228,372             218,602               
Physical Plant 3,289,495          2,222,321            
Professional and Scientific Supplies 561,111             961,533               
Other 611,623             669,601               

8,175,743$        8,543,253$          
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
NOTE 7 – LOANS TO STUDENTS 
 
Student loans made through the Federal Perkins Loan Program comprise substantially all of the loans to students at June 30, 
2013 and 2012.  The Program provides for cancellation of a loan at rates of 10% to 30% per year up to a maximum of 100% 
if the participant complies with certain provisions.  The federal government reimburses the University for portion of 
amounts cancelled under these provisions. 
 
As the University determines that loans are uncollectible and not eligible for reimbursement by the federal government, the 
loans are written off and assigned to the U.S. Department of Education.  The University has provided an allowance for 
uncollectible loans, which, in management’s opinion, is sufficient to absorb loans that will ultimately be written off.  At June 
30, 2013 and 2012, the allowance for uncollectible loans was estimated to be $492,741 and $493,176 respectively. 
 
NOTE 8 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows: 
 
The following roll forward of capital assets is for the Lawrence, Edwards, and Medical Center Campuses only.   
 

 Beginning   Ending
Balance Additions Retirements Balance

Land 25,282,923$        936,084$              $ 26,219,007$            
Land improvements 4,192,155            102,000                4,294,155                
Works of Art 18,554,067          378,979                18,933,046              
Software 3,276,064            338,554                3,614,618                
Infrastructure 101,150,713        8,408,125             109,558,838            
Buildings 1,316,700,465     82,009,096           -                       1,398,709,561         
Equipment 178,091,978        10,654,666           (6,781,803)       181,964,841            
Vehicles 18,034,909          662,668                (335,329)          18,362,248              
     Total 1,665,283,274     103,490,172         (7,117,132)       1,761,656,314         

Less accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure 29,682,021          3,780,993             33,463,014              
Buildings 529,245,383        43,044,643           572,290,026            
Equipment 121,199,942        13,550,336           (5,850,749)       128,899,529            
Vehicles 15,460,169          1,132,290             (335,333)          16,257,126              
     Total accumulated depreciation 695,587,515        61,508,262           (6,186,082)       750,909,695            

Capital assets, net 969,695,759$      41,981,910$         (931,050)$         

Kansas Athletics Inc. 14,074,331              
KU Center for Research, Inc. 24,292,630              
KU Memorial Corporation 5,620,799                
KU Medical Center Research Institute 281,284                   
KU Medical Center Student Union 16,623                     
Construction in Progress 17,347,268              

 1,072,379,554$       
  

The University elected not to capitalize its library book collections.  These collections adhere to the University’s policy to 
(a) maintain them for public exhibition, education, or research; (b) protect, keep encumbered, care for, and preserve them; 
and (c) require proceeds from their sale to be used to acquire other collection items.  Generally accepted accounting 
principles permit collections maintained in this manner to be charged to operations at the time of purchase rather than be 
capitalized. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
NOTE 9 - CHANGES IN NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Non-current liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows: 
 
  Beginning   Ending Current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion

Accrued compensated absences 47,029,788$        33,740,065$     (43,220,030)$    37,549,823$        31,618,601$     
Accrued other post-employment benefits 21,798,000          4,230,000         (281,000)           25,747,000          -                        
Capital leases payable 13,214,626          2,309,115         (2,021,904)        13,501,837          754,589            
Notes payable 8,519,107            -                        (59,152)             8,459,955            654,075            
Revenue bonds payable 376,495,000        -                        (19,650,000)      356,845,000        23,415,000       
Other long-term liabilities 12,381,584          -                        (919,335)           11,462,249          919,337            
  Total non-current liabilities 479,438,105$      40,279,180$     (66,151,421)$    453,565,864$      57,361,602$     

 
 
 
NOTE 10 - REVENUE BONDS OUTSTANDING 
 
Revenue bonds payable consist of the following: 
  Principal Outstanding

at June 30, 2013
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2002A-1 (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Housing System Renovation Project - Ellsworth Hall) $11,230,000.  Due in annual installments of 
$45,000 to $1,280,000.  Issued 4/1/02 with final maturity on 5/1/27.  Interest ranging from 3.50% to 5.00% payable 
semi-annually.  A rating of AAA was assigned by Standard & Poor’s based upon an insurance policy issued by 
Ambac Assurance Corporation.  The underlying revenue stream was assigned an Aa3 post sale rating by Moody’s 
Investor Service.

330,000                     

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2005E-1 (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Housing System 1996E Templin Hall Refunding Project) $3,065,000.  Due in annual installments of 
$155,000 to $270,000.  Issued 5/1/05 with a final maturity on 5/1/21.  Interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0% payable 
semi-annually.  A rating of Aa3 was assigned by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with 
the addition of an insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.

1,860,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2005E-1 (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Housing System Hashinger Hall Renovation) $12,965,000.  Due in annual installments of $125,000 to 
$2,015,000.  Issued 5/1/05 with a final maturity on 5/1/30.  Interest ranging from 3.0% to 4.5% payable semi-annually.  
A rating of Aa3 was assigned by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an 
insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.

11,365,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2006B (Kansas Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Parking Facilities Project - Park & Ride) $9,790,000.  Due in annual installments of $140,000 to 
$1,450,000.  Issued 4/1/06 with a final maturity on 4/1/21.  Interest ranging from 3.5% to 4.13% payable semi-
annually.   A rating of Aa3 was assigned by by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the 
addition of an insurance policy issued by XL Capital Assurance Inc.

9,015,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2007E (Kansas Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Recreation and Fitness Center Expansion Project) $6,275,000.  Due in annual installments of $200,000 to 
$450,000.  Issued 5/1/07 with final maturity on 5/1/27.   Interest ranging from 3.75% to 4.30% payable semi-annually.  
A rating of AAA was assigned by Standard & Poor’s based upon an insurance policy issued by XL Capital 
Assurance.

4,885,000                  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
Principal Outstanding

at June 30, 2013
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2007M (Kansas Board of Regents - University of 
Kansas – Law Enforcement Training Center) $18,220,000.  Due in annual installments of $670,000 to $1,350,000.  
Issued 12/6/07 with final maturity on 6/1/27.  Interest ranging from 3.5 % to 4.6% payable semi-annually.  A rating of 
A1 was assigned by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance 
policy issued by Assured Guaranty Corporation.

14,630,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2008L (Kansas Board of Regents - University of 
Kansas – School of Pharmacy Project) $21,070,000.  Due in annual installments of $560,000 to $1,245,000.  Issued  
11/1/08 with final maturity on 11/1/28.  The first principal payment is due 11/1/09.  Interest ranging from 2.0 % to 
5.25% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aaa was assigned by Moody’s Investor Service based upon an insurance 
policy issued by Financial Security Assurance, Inc.

18,080,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2009M (State of Kansas Project - Pharmacy) 
$31,650,000.  Due in annual installments of $1,115,000 to $2,350,000.  Issued  8/13/09 with final maturity on 11/1/29.  
Interest ranging from 3.0 % to 6.31% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was assigned by Moody’s Investor 
Service and AA by Standard & Poor's.

24,880,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010A (Kansas Board of Regents - University of 
Kansas Housing System Program) $23,700,000.  Due in annual installments of $610,0000 to $2,030,000.  Issued 
1/28/10 with final maturity on 11/1/29.   Interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.05% payable semi-annually.  A rating of 
Aa2 was assigned by Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

21,815,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010B (University of Kansas Energy 
Conservation Program) $21,650,000.  Due in annual installments of $275,0000 to $1,815,000.  Issued 1/7/10 with 
final maturity on 11/1/26.   Interest ranging from 2.50% to 3.75% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was 
assigned by Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

19,175,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010K-1 (University of Kansas Refund of 
Edwards Campus 2002K) $3,615,000.  Due in annual installments of $40,000 to $530,000.  Issued 5/12/10 with final 
maturity on 5/1/23.   Interest ranging from 2.00% to 3.50% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was assigned by 
Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

3,495,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010K-1 (University of Kansas Medical Center 
Parking Facilities) $1,240,000.  Due in annual installments of $240,000 to $255,000.  Issued 5/12/10 with final 
maturity on 5/1/15.   Interest ranging from 2.00% to 3.00% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was assigned by 
Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

505,000                     

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010K-1 (University of Kansas Refund of 1999 D 
Parking Garage #2) $3,005,000.  Due in annual installments of $455,000 to $860,000.  Issued 5/12/10 with final 
maturity on 5/1/14.   Interest ranging from 2.00% to 3.00% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was assigned by 
Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

455,000                     

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010K-2 (University of Kansas Medical Center 
Parking Build America Bonds) $7,190,000.  Due in annual installments of $265,000 to $495,000.  Issued 5/12/10 
with final maturity on 5/1/35.   Interest ranging from 3.60% to 6.20% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was 
assigned by Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

7,190,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010M-1 (University of Kansas Edwards Campus 
Building No. 4) $6,125,000.  Due in annual installments of $1,175,000 to $1,275,000.  Issued 5/5/10 with final 
maturity on 6/30/2016.   Interest ranging from 2.00% to 2.125% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was assigned 
by Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

3,750,000                  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
Principal Outstanding

at June 30, 2013
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2010M-2 (University of Kansas Edwards Campus 
Building No. 4 -Build America Bonds) $14,865,000.  Due in annual installments of $1,305,000 to $1,700,000.  
Issued 5/5/10 with final maturity on 9/1/25.   Interest ranging from 2.00% to 5.10% payable semi-annually.  A rating 
of Aa2 was assigned by Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

14,865,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2011C (Kansas Board of Regents - University of 
Kansas Housing System Project) $13,450,000.  Due in annual installments of $385,000 to $830,000.  Issued 
5/18/11 with final maturity on 5/1/36.   Interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.375% payable semi-annually.  A rating of 
Aa1 was assigned by Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

12,695,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2012D (Refunding Revenue Bonds - University of 
Kansas Projects) $7,370,000.  Issued 3/7/12 with an with final maturity of 5/1/29.  This bond series was issued to 
refund the Bond Series 1999C, 2002A, and 2002K for the specific purpose of refinancing.  Principal is due in annual 
installments ranging from $185,000 to $1,750,000 beginning in 5/1/12, interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.00%.  The 
bonds were rated AA rating by Standards and Poor's at the time of issuance and rated Aa1 by Moody's Investor 

5,635,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority BAN 2012-2 (The Board of Regents-University of Kansas School of 
Engineering Project) $3,800,000.  Issued 6/1/12 with final maturity on 1/1/14.  The bear interest at a rate of .25% 
above the yeild on a one-year U.S. Treasury securities.

3,800,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2003J-1 (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Medical Center Energy Conservation Project) $13,080,000.  Due in annual installments ranging from 
$350,000 to $1,060,000.   Issued 8/3/03 with a final maturity of 8/1/24.  Interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.75% 
payable semi-annually.  The bonds were rated at AA by Standard & Poor’s and Aa2 by Moody’s at the time of 
issuance. The rating was upgraded to AAA with the purchase of insurance.

3,770,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2005D (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Medical Center Scientific Research and Development Facilities Projects) $27,130,000.  Due in annual 
installments ranging from $1,170,000 to $3,935,000.  Issued 4/1/05 with a final maturity on 10/1/15.  Interest ranging 
from 3.90% to 4.80% payable semi-annually.  The bonds were rated at AA by Standard & Poor’s at the time of 
issuance. The rating was upgraded to AAA with the purchase of insurance.

7,470,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2005E-2 (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Medical Center Parking Garage #3) $3,330,000.  Due in annual installments ranging from $120,000 to 
$225,000.  Issued 5/24/05 with a final maturity on 5/1/25.  Interest ranging from 3.00% to 5.00% payable semi-
annually.  The underlying revenue stream was assigned an A1 rating by Moody’s Investor Service.  The bonds were 
upgraded to Aaa with the addition of an insurance policy issued by Ambac Assurance Corporation.

2,395,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2010P-1 (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Medical Center Clinical Research Center Project) $3,950.000.    Due in annual installments ranging from 
$620,000 to $705,000.  Issued 10/7/10 with a final maturity in 9/1/16.  Interest ranging from 2.00% to 3.00% payable 
semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was assigned by Moody's Investor Service and AA by Standard & Poor’s.

2,700,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2010P-2 (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Medical Center Clinical Research Center Projecet - Build America Bonds) $11,980,000.    Due in 
annual installments ranging from $725,000 to $1,025,000.  Issued 10/7/10 with a final maturity in 9/1/30.  Interest 
ranging from 2.60% to 5.00% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa2 was assigned by Moody's Investor Service and 
AA by Standard & Poor’s.

11,980,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2010N (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Medical Center Research Institute, Inc. Project) $30,160,000.  Due in annual installments ranging from 
$910,000 to $2,550,000.  Issued 10/7/10 with a final maturity in 4/1/30.  Interest ranging from 3.5% to 5.00% payable 
semi-annually.  The bonds were rated AA rating by Standards and Poor's at the time of issuance and rated Aa1 by 
Moody's Investor Service.

25,180,000                
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
Principal Outstanding

at June 30, 2013
Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2012D (The Board of Regents - Medical Center 
Scientific Research and Development Facilities Projects) $36,565,000.  Issued 3/7/12 with a final maturity of 
5/1/29.  This bond series was issued to refund the Bond Series 2003C for the specific purpose of refinancing.  
Principal is due in annual installments ranging from $2,200,000 to $3,475,000 beginning in 2017, interest ranging from 
2.00% to 3.25%.  The bonds were rated AA rating by Standards and Poor's at the time of issuance and rated Aa1 by 
Moody's Investor Service.

36,565,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds - Series 2012D (The Board of Regents - Medical Center 
Energy Conservation) $36,565,000.  Issued 3/7/12 with a final maturity of 5/1/25.  This bond series was issued to 
refund the Bond Series 2003J for the specific purpose of refinancing.  Principal is due in annual installments ranging 
from $5,000 to $995,000 beginning 5/1/15, interest ranging from 2.00% to 4.0%.  The bonds were rated AA rating by 
Standards and Poor's at the time of issuance and rated Aa1 by Moody's Investor Service.

5,265,000                  

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2004K (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Athletic Corporation – Restructuring Project) $17,830,000.  Due in annual installments of $660,000 to 
$1,355,000.  Issued 11/16/04 with final maturity on 6/1/23.  Interest ranging from 3.3% to 4.5% payable semi-
annually.  A rating of A was assigned by Standard & Poor’s. 

11,060,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2008C (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Athletic Corporation Project) $32,820,000.  Due in annual installments of $360,000 to $9,035,000.  Issued 
7/1/08 with final maturity on 6/1/33.  Interest ranging from  3.0 % to  5.0 % payable semi-annually.  A rating of A1 
was assigned by Moody’s Investor Service.

30,720,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2012E (Revenue Refunding Bonds – University of 
Kansas Center for Research, Inc. Project ) $29,675,000 ($14,075,000 tax-exempt and $15,600,000 taxable).  Due 
in annual installments of $2,190,000 to $2,950,000.  Issued 3/15/12 with a final maturity on 2/1/24.  Interest ranging 
from 2.0% to 5.0% payable semi-annually.  A rating of Aa1 was assigned by Moody’s.  

27,420,000                

Kansas Development Finance Authority Revenue Bonds – Series 2006G (The Board of Regents – University of 
Kansas Center for Research, Inc. Project (SBCIII) $17,085,000.  Due in annual installments of $470,000 to 
$4,615,000.  Issued 10/1/06 with final maturity on 2/1/26.  Interest ranging from 4.00% to 5.04% payable semi-
annually.  A rating of A Stable was assigned by Standard & Poor’s and a rating of Aa1 was assigned by Moody’s 
Investor Services.

13,895,000                

Total 356,845,000$            
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
NOTE 11 - REVENUE BONDS MATURITY SCHEDULE 
 
Maturities of principal and interest requirements on revenue bonds payable are as follows: 
 

 

 
Year Ending June 30: Principal Interest Total

2014 23,415,000$        14,803,699$        38,218,699$        
2015 20,930,000          14,090,593          35,020,593          
2016 21,705,000          13,351,427          35,056,427          
2017 20,800,000          12,620,572          33,420,572          
2018 21,620,000          11,794,002          33,414,002          

2019-2023 108,350,000        46,422,557          154,772,557        
2024-2028 100,385,000        23,347,539          123,732,539        
2029-0033 36,285,000          5,553,162            41,838,162          
2034-2038 3,355,000            537,155               3,892,155            

356,845,000$      142,520,706$      499,365,706$      

 
 

The University defeased a portion of 1999 D bond series through advance refunding during fiscal year 2006, and defeased 
the remainder of the 1999 D bond series in 2010.  The University also defeased a portion of 2002A-1 through advanced 
refunding, and refunded two other bond series during fiscal year 2010.  During 2011, the University refunded 2 bonds series 
in conjunction with one bond issuance.   During 2012, the University refunded 6 bond series in conjunction with two bond 
issuances; Series 2012D and Series 2012E.  Accordingly, the series are not reflected in the accompanying statements.   
 
The amount of bonds that have been defeased as of June 30, 2013 consists of the following:  
 

Outstanding at
Series June 30, 2013

1998 D - University of Kansas Housing System Renovation Project - Lewis Hall 3,100,000$       
1999 C - University of Kansas Child Care Facility Construction Project 1,750,000         
1999 D - University of Kansas - Parking Garage #2 Construction Project 4,585,000         
2002 A-1 - University of Kansas Housing System Renovation Project - Ellsworth 8,230,000         
2002 A-2 - University of Kansas Student Recreation and Fitness Center 6,160,000         
2002 K - Universtiy of Kansas Edwards Campus Project 4,730,000         
2003 C - Research and Development Facilites Projects 36,100,000       
2003 J - University of Kansas Medical Center Energy Conservation Project 5,490,000         
2005 B - University of Kansas Center for Research, Inc. Project (MRB) 35,255,000       

            Total 105,400,000$   

 
 

In March 2012, the University issued $49,200,000 in Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012D with interest ranging from 
2.0% to 4.75% which redeemed $50,950,000 of outstanding bonds.  The University redeemed the Series 1999C, 2002K, 
2002A, 2003C and the 2003J with interest rate ranging from 2.0% to 5.10% to reduce its total debt service payments over 
the next 18 years by almost $6.0 million and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt 
service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $4.6 million.  
 
In March 2012, the University of Kansas Center for Research, Inc. issued $15,600,000 in taxable bonds with average 
interest rate of 2.00%  and $14,075,000 in tax-exempt bonds with an average interest rate of 4.30% to redeem $35,255,000 
of outstanding Series 2005B Kansas Development Finance Authority Taxable Revenue bonds (2005B bonds) with an 
average interest rate of 5.22%.  The Center redeemed the Series 2005B bonds to reduce its total debt service payments over 
the next 13 years by almost $8.7 million and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the debt 
service payments on the old and new debt) of approximately $7.5 million.  
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
NOTE 12 - LEASE OBLIGATIONS 
 
The University of Kansas is obligated for the purchase of certain equipment funded through the issuance of blanket 
financing agreements in the amount of $13,501,837 and $13,214,617 as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Payments 
to liquidate these obligations are scheduled as follows: 
 

Year Ending June 30: Total
2014 754,589$             
2015 1,701,450            
2016 1,721,811            
2017 1,636,187            
2018 6,940,677            

2019 and thereafter 747,123               
13,501,837$        

 
Included in this balance is the $18,699,700 Master Lease Purchase agreement between the University and the State for the 
University’s Energy Performance Contract.  The University’s Energy Performance Contract consists of approximately 100 
energy savings measures that were completed in fiscal year 2004 and were expected to result in annual utility and 
maintenance savings of $1,700,000.  The projects were funded through a Master Lease Purchase Agreement between the 
State of Kansas and Citibank, N.A.  The University is responsible for repaying the State for the 20-year term of the lease.   
The remaining principal balance of the master lease agreement as of June 30, 2013 is $10,596,757. 
 
 
NOTE 13– DEFERRED INFLOWS/OUTFLOWS 

 
Per GASB Statement No. 63, the University’s unamortized loss on bond refunding is no longer reported as a negative long-
term liability, but instead as a deferred outflow.  Deferred outflow amounts for the year ended June 30, 2013 are as follows:   
 
  Beginning   Ending Current Non-current

Balance Additions Reductions Balance Portion Portion

Unamortized loss on bond refunding 3,985,918$ -$              425,063$   3,560,855$ 425,063$   3,135,792$        

  
 
NOTE 14 - RETIREMENT PLANS 
 
University employees participate in two separate retirement programs.  University Support Staff and Classified Staff 
employees participate in the "Kansas Public Employees Retirement System" (KPERS).  This defined benefit program is 
funded through contributions by the University and the individual employees at rates established by KPERS.  The 
University contributed $5,955,062 and $5,417,162 during fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively, and individual 
employees contributed $2,539,963 and $2,367,903.  Unclassified employees participate in the "Board of Regents 403(b) 
Retirement Program".  This defined contribution program is funded through contributions by the University and the 
individual employees at rates established by state statute.  The University contributed $33,223,894 and $30,998,321 during 
fiscal years 2013 and 2012, respectively, and individual employees contributed $21,414,486 and  $19,959,155.   
 
Employees of Kansas Athletics, Inc., the University of Kansas Memorial Corporation, and the University of Kansas Medical 
Center Research Institute, participate in defined contribution programs similar to the “Board of Regents 403(b) Retirement 
Program”.  The Corporations contributed $1,843,612 and $1,832,327 to their individual plans during fiscal years 2013 and 
2012, respectively. 
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For the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 

 
NOTE 15 – OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS (OPEB) 
 
DESCRIPTION 
 
As an agency of the State of Kansas, the University participates in the State’s health insurance benefit plan.  Kansas statute 
provides that postemployment healthcare benefits be extended to retired employees who have met age and/or service 
eligibility requirements. The health insurance benefit generally provides the same coverage for retirees and their dependents 
as for active employees and their dependents.  The health insurance benefit plan is a single employer defined benefit plan 
administered by Kansas Health Policy Authority.  The benefit is available for selection at retirement and is extended to 
retirees and their dependents for life.  Non-Medicare participants are subsidized by the University, thus resulting in a 
liability to the University. At a State level, the accounting for the health insurance for retirees is included in the State’s Self-
Insurance Health fund, with the subsidy provided from the Self-Insurance Health fund.   
 
 
FUNDING POLICY 
 
The University provides health insurance benefits to retirees and their dependents in accordance with Kansas law (K.S.A. 
75-6511).  Kansas statute, which may be amended by the state legislature, established that participating retirees contribute to 
the employee group health fund benefits plan, including administrative costs.   
 
The University does not pay retirement benefits directly; they are paid implicitly over time through employer subsidization 
of active premiums that would be lower if retirees were not part of the experience group.      
 
 
ANNUAL OPEB COST AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION 
 
The University’s annual OPEB cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an 
amount actuarially determined in accordance with parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial 
liabilities over a period of not to exceed thirty years.  
 
The following table presents the components of the University’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the contribution to the plan, 
and changes in the University’s net OPEB obligation. 
 

Total
Annual required contribution - amortized liability 1,882,000$            
Interest on amortized liability 72,000                   
Normal cost (with interest) 2,936,000              
  Annual OPEB cost (expense) 4,890,000              
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 839,000                 
Adjustment to the ARC (1,238,000)             
Contributions made (related to implicit rate subsidy) (542,000)                
  Increase in net OPEB obligation 3,949,000              
Net OPEB obligation July 1, 2012 21,798,000            
Net OPEB obligation June 30, 2013 25,747,000$          
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Schedule of Employer Contributions (for fiscal year ended) 
 

Annual Net  End of Year
Fiscal OPEB Employer Percentage Net OPEB
Year Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation

 
2012 4,513,000$        779,000$           17% 21,798,000$        
2013 4,491,000$        542,000$           12% 25,747,000$         

 
 

FUNDED STATUS AND FUNDING PROGRESS 
 
As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $37,902,000 
The University’s policy is to fund the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis that is paid implicitly through rate subsidization, 
resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $,37,902,000.  The covered payroll (annual payroll of active 
employees covered by the plan) was $555,701,000, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 7%. 
 
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the 
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The valuation includes, for example, assumptions about future 
employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the 
annual required contributions of employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with the past 
expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding progress will present in time, multi-year 
trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued 
liabilities for benefits. 
 
Schedule of Funding Progress 
 

 Actuarial  UAAL as a
 Actuarial Accrued   Percent of

Actuarial Value of Liability Unfunded Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets (AAL) AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

06/30/12 -$                  38,921,000$ 38,921,000$ 0% 532,737,000$ 7%
06/30/13 -$                  37,902,000$ 37,902,000$ 0% 555,701,000$ 7%  

 
 
ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 
 
Projections of benefits for reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan and include the types of benefits provided at 
the time of valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit cost between the employer and plan members to that 
point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term 
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
 
In the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation the projected unit credit method was applied. The actuarial assumptions included a 
3.85% investment rate of return, which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment returns on the State’s pooled 
funds and investments. The valuation assumed annual healthcare cost trend rates of 5.5% to 10% in the first ten years and an 
ultimate rate of 5.0% after ten years. The valuation followed generally accepted actuarial methods and included tests as 
considered necessary to assure the accuracy of the results.  The UAAL is being amortized over a 30-year open period in 
level dollar amounts. 
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NOTE 16 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the University had outstanding commitments under construction contracts totaling 
$149,900,000 and $104,906,000 respectively. 

The University of Kansas Center for Research Inc. (KUCR ), was involved in a confidential patent dispute and a settlement 
was reached in which KUCR realized a net settlement amount of $1,089,031 during fiscal year June 30, 2011.  During fiscal 
year June 30, 2012, the settlement was finalized and KUCR realized an additional net settlement amount of $829,738 and 
royalties of $5,377,172.  For the year ended June 20, 2013, royalties related to this patent totaled $4,439,455.  The amounts 
indicated above are reflected on the accompanying the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.  As a 
result of the settlement KUCR is entitled to future royalty payments until the expiration of the patent.  

All university buildings and contents were insured up to a limit of $200,000,000 per occurrence subject to deductibles 
between $250,000 to $500,000. Named equipment is covered up to the declared value with a $5,000 deductible.  State-
owned automobiles are covered by liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage up to $500,000 per occurrence.  
The University is not aware of any significant outstanding claims as of June 30, 2013. 

In the normal course of operations, the University receives grants and other forms of reimbursement from various Federal 
and State agencies.  These activities are subject to audit by agents of the funding authority, the purpose of which is to ensure 
compliance with conditions precedent to providing of such funds.  University officials believe that the liability, if any, for 
any reimbursement that may arise as the result of audits, would not be material. 

NOTE 17 – NATURAL CLASSIFICATIONS WITH FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATIONS 

The University’s operating expenses by functional and natural classification for 2013 are as follows: 

Scholarships
Compensation & Supplies &

Functional Classification & Benefits Fellowships Utilities Other Services Depreciation Total

Instruction 333,401,609$     -$  277,669$          27,861,660$      -$  361,540,938$         
Research 171,376,491       - 6,388                98,902,247        - 270,285,126           
Public service 22,484,376         - - 14,702,448        - 37,186,824             
Academic support 39,226,080         - - 19,213,998        - 58,440,078             
Student services 20,499,230         - 422,001            7,537,965          - 28,459,196             
Institutional support 44,857,004         - - 18,197,155        - 63,054,159             
Operations and maintenance of plant 39,770,897         - 21,412,445       18,292,531        - 79,475,873             
Depreciation - - - - 69,887,048      69,887,048             
Scholarships and fellowships - 27,709,149       - - - 27,709,149             
Auxiliary enterprises:
    Housing 3,187,148           - 2,960,250         8,183,472          - 14,330,870             
    Athletics 30,603,788         10,791,099       1,339,424         33,400,113        - 76,134,424             
    Parking 2,870,357           - 335,810            3,418,251          - 6,624,418               
    Student unions 13,731,243         - 739,560            19,222,370        - 33,693,173             
    University health services 5,035,463           - - 2,360,577          - 7,396,040               
    Other auxiliary enterprises 2,753,251           - - 1,996,915          - 4,750,166               
Other 1,407,138           - 5,675                3,841,614          - 5,254,427               
          Total 731,204,075$  38,500,248$  27,499,222$  277,131,316$ 69,887,048$ 1,144,221,909$  

Natural Classification
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NOTE 18 – NEW GASB STATEMENT 

The University has adopted the following newly enacted GASB (Governmental Accounting Standards Board) statement: 

GASB 63, (Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net 
    Position) – Effective fiscal year 2013 

This statement focuses on two new elements of the Financial Statement, deferred outflows and deferred inflows, which are 
reported separately from assets and liabilities.  Deferred outflows and deferred inflows result from the transactions of the 
consumption or acquisition of net assets in one period that are applicable to future periods.  The Statement of Net Position 
replaces the Statement of Net Assets and should present the Statement of Net Position in a format that displays assets, plus 
deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities, less deferred inflows of resources, equals net position.  Fiscal year 2012 
Financials have been reclassified to display the new format. 

Based on the definition of deferred outflows or deferred inflows, items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities 
are reclassified as deferred outflows or deferred inflows.  A reclassification that currently affects the University’s financials 
includes the unamortized losses/gains related to the refunding of debt.  

Unamortized losses/gains related to the refunding of debt should no longer be reported as an asset or liability, 
but instead reported as a deferred outflow/inflow.  The loss/gain is still the difference between the reacquisition 
price and the net carrying amount of the old debt and should be recognized as a component of interest expense in a 
systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is 
shorter. 

The University has reclassified its 2012 financials to conform with GASB Statement No. 63.  The impact of this adjustment 
on the University’s annual consolidated financial statements is listed below: 

Unamortized loss on bond refunding of $3,985,918 reported as a negative liability in fiscal year 2012 was moved 
from the liability section to the new section deferred outflows.  This increases fiscal year 2012 liabilities and 
deferred outflows by $3,985,918.  The adjustments cancel each other out, so there is no impact on total net 
position. 
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